ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 5, 2017
8:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Shel | ey Hughes, Chair
Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Cathy G essel

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senat or Tom Begi ch

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 102

"An Act relating to funding for Internet services for school
districts; and relating to the Alaska higher education
i nvestment fund."

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 103

"An Act establishing the Alaska education innovation grant
program elimnating the Al aska education grant program and the
Al aska performance schol arship program redesignating the Al aska
hi gher education investnent fund as the Alaska education
i nnovation grant fund; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
SENATE BILL NO 104
"An Act relating to the duties of the state Board of Education
and Early Devel opnent; and relating to school curriculum?"”
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 102
SHORT TI TLE: | NTERNET FOR SCHOOLS; FUNDI NG

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- April 5, 2017



SPONSOR('s): FI NANCE

04/ 03/ 17 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

04/ 03/ 17 (S) EDC, FIN

04/ 03/ 17 (S) HUS WAIVED PUBLIC HEARI NG NOTI CE, RULE
23

04/ 04/ 17 (S) EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 04/ 17 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 04/ 17 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

BILL: SB 103
SHORT TI TLE. ED GRANTS/ SCHOLARSHI P; | NNOVATI VE ED FUND
SPONSOR(s): FI NANCE

04/ 03/ 17 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

04/ 03/ 17 (S) EDC, FIN

04/ 03/ 17 (S) HUS WAIVED PUBLIC HEARI NG NOTI CE, RULE
23

04/ 04/ 17 (S) EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 04/ 17 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 04/ 17 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

BILL: SB 104

SHORT TITLE: EDUCATI ON CURRI CULUM
SPONSOR(s) : FI NANCE

04/ 03/ 17 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

04/ 03/ 17 (S) EDC, FIN

04/ 03/ 17 (S) HUS WAIVED PUBLIC HEARI NG NOTI CE, RULE
23

04/ 04/ 17 (S) EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 04/ 17 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 04/ 17 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR ANNA MACKI NNON, Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Revi ewed SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.

SEAN DUSEK, Superi ntendent

Kenai School District

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.

CLAI RE HOLLAND LECLAI R, Representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- April 5, 2017



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102.

S| ERRA LLOYD, Student

Juneau Dougl as Hi gh School

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in favor of
educat i on.

NCRM WOOTEN, Executive Director
Al aska Associ ation of Al aska School Boards (AASB)
Juneau, Al aska

fully funding

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.

DEENA M TCHELL, Representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.

STEPHANI E BUTLER, Executive Director

Al aska Comm ssion on Post-Secondary Education
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 103.

LI SA SKI LES PARADY, Executive Director
Al aska Council| of School Adm nistrators (ACSA)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.

DR. MARK M LLER, Superi nt endent
Juneau School District
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.

TERRI E GOTTSTEI N, Representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.

DAVE HANSON, Representing hinsel f
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102 and SB 103.

SAICH OVA, Director

St udent Achi evenent

Uni versity of Al aska- Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 103.

JOHN CONVELL, Superi nt endent

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3-

April 5, 2017



Unal aska City School District

Unal aska, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.

TODD SMOLDON, Representing hinself
W1l ow, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102 and SB 103.

BRENDA TAYLOR, Par ent
Juneau, Al aska
POSI Tl ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102 and SB 104.

ANDY HOLLEN, Representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.

KAI TLI N DEMARCUS, Representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 103.

CHERYL TUTTLE, President

St udent Governance O fice

Kenai Peninsul a Col | ege

N ki ski, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102.

MARY NANUWAK, Representing herself
Bet hel , Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the inportance of educati on.

SCOTT MACMANUS, Superi nt endent

Al aska Gateway School District

Tok, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.

JI' M ANDERSQN, CFO

Anchorage School District

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 103 and SB 104.

JOHN BLAI NE, Representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 103.

CATHERI NE COMRD, Representing hersel f

Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 5, 2017



BECCA BERNARD, Representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.

KATE MEYER, Representing herself
Honer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 102.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8: 00: 30 AM

CHAIR SHELLEY HUGHES <called the Senate Education Standing
Committee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Begich, G essel, and Chair Hughes. Senators
Coghill and Stevens arrived shortly thereafter.

She noted there would be public testinmony on SB 102, SB 103, and
SB 104.

SB 102-1 NTERNET FOR SCHOCLS; FUNDI NG
SB 103- ED GRANTS/ SCHOLARSHI P; | NNOVATI VE _ED FUND
SB 104- EDUCATI ON CURRI CULUM

8:02: 33 AM
CHAlI R HUGHES announced the consideration of SB 102, SB 103, and
SB 104, sponsored by the Senate Finance Comm ttee.

SENATOR ANNA MACKI NNON, Al aska State Legislature, reviewed SB
102, SB 103, and SB 104. She stated that:

In Alaska we have high achieving students, great
t eachers, and many high performng schools and
districts. Geatness is out there. However, there's an
enor nous achi evenent gap for nmany Al aska students, and
outcones are not where they should be for students to
achieve their lives' goals.

SENATOR MACKI NNON provi ded a summary of SB 102:

SB 102 provides E-rate matching noney that is
| everaged by every dollar that we invest, another $7
to support broadband in conmunities across our state
and be a tool for schools to use in accessing good
teachers for great outcones anywhere in the world.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 5, 2017



8: 03: 32 AM
SENATOR MACKI NNON expl ai ned SB 103:

SB 103 is the source of funds proposed to be used to
hel p support K-12 education. SB 103 phases out the
Al aska Performance Scholarship allowing seniors that
graduate this calendar year to wutilize the grant
through all their endeavors in a college experience.

Freshmen that are in college now will continue through
to achieve their goals, sophonores, as well as
juniors, but 2017 would be the last graduating
students that would receive this service. It would

retitle the program and the renmaining noney in the
fund to becone the Alaska Education Innovation G ant
Program The use of those funds wll be determ ned
| ater through school districts working with DEED and
provi ding, through the CGovernor's office, a request to
the legislature to support innovation to help schools
across our state and students to achieve their |ives'
dr eam

8:04:49 AM
SENATOR MACKI NNON sunmari zed SB 104:

SB 104 provides an opportunity for school districts to
take a pause on curriculum review, which costs tine
and noney, and hopefully allocate those resources to
work with DEED to look at curriculum and best
practices both nationw de and around the world to see
if there is a better way that we could do business.

She noted that that the bills are voluntary, with the exception
of the APS provision that would change the use of future funds.

CHAIR HUGHES said the bills keep local control. She sunmmarized
the three bills.

CHAI R HUGHES opened public testinony on SB 102, SB 103, and SB
104.

8. 06: 59 AM

SEAN DUSEK, Superintendent, Kenai School District, testified on
SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104. He thanked the legislature for its
hard work on efforts to inprove schools. He spoke in favor of
providing nore broadband infrastructure to schools. He voiced
concern about losing the APS which has provided results at the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 5, 2017



university level and increased rigor at the high school |evel
since 2011. He added that when education was increased to
adequate levels in 2011, KPBSD saw a lot of inprovenent from
forward, adequate funding. He pointed out that these bills
require a level of support from DEED and the comm ssioner. He
requested that the legislature do their part and fund DEED, so
they can do their job.

He stated that KPBSD is working hard to personalize and
noderni ze through curriculum devel opnent and will continue to
| ook at standards and best practices. They are noving into the
real m of professional developnent to inprove the quality of
teachers. He enphasized the need for strong |eadership in
education, which is the next big inpact to student achievenent.
He hopes the legislature wll support best practice efforts
through the Al aska Education Challenge. He nmaintained that
educators in Al aska have not given up on their students and they
care greatly about inproving education.

8:09: 13 AM
CHAI R HUGHES not ed the presence of Senators Stevens and Coghill.

8: 09: 49 AM

CLAI RE HOLLAND LECLAIR, representing herself, testified on SB
102. She asked when there would be testinony regarding education
funding. She addressed her concern for the loss of the Al aska
Per f ormance Schol arshi p program

8:11: 37 AM
SI ERRA LLOYD, Student, Juneau Douglas H gh School, testified in
favor of fully funding educati on.

8:12:49 AM

NORM WOOTEN, Executive Director, Alaska Association of Al aska
School Boards (AASB), testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.
He thanked the committee for its efforts. He opined that SB 102
is very helpful to education and will have a dramatic effect on
rural districts. He turned to SB 103 and requested to keep the
Al aska Performance Scholarship. He stated that it is a program
that is working.

He voi ced appreciation for the curriculumreview in SB 104. Mbst

districts wll continue to review their curriculum He was
concerned about having DEED taking on one nore task - devel opi ng
nodel curriculum - noting the departnment nmay be reaching a

br eaki ng poi nt.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 5, 2017



8:16: 52 AM

DEENA M TCHELL, representing herself, testified on SB 102, SB
103, and SB 104. She began with what she appreci ates about the
committee's work on education. She spoke in favor of SB 102.
Havi ng adequate broadband is sonething that should be in place.
She thought the focus on innovation in SB 103 was good, however,
she testified in favor of keeping the Alaska Performance
Schol arship. She provided an exanple of a student who is going
to be able to attend col |l ege because of it.

She said school districts will review curriculum even w thout SB
104. She stressed the need for providing autonony for school
districts and |local control. She urged the conmttee to provide
professionals with stable, adequate, predictable funding.

8:22:55 AM

STEPHANI E BUTLER, Executive Director, Al aska Conm ssion on Post -
Secondary Education, testified on SB 103. She thanked the
commttee for their creative, thoughtful proposals. She spoke of
the shortage of teachers and efforts to provide innovative
solutions to address this crisis. She stressed the inportance of
focusing on prograns that offer a solution, such as the APS. She
spoke of favor of retaining the APS and offered data to prove
its effectiveness. She read the four goals of the APS and |isted
t he outconmes it provided.

8:26:44 AM

LI SA SKI LES PARADY, Executive Director, Alaska Council of Schoo
Adm nistrators (ACSA), testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104.
She said her nenbers have not had sufficient tinme to review the
bills. She hoped that the process will slow down enough to give
districts time to work through them She thanked the sponsor and
the commttee for their work on the bills.

DR. PARADY first addressed SB 102. She spoke in favor of
i ncreasing broadband to all of Alaska. In SB 103 the efforts to
support continued innovation is welconed, however, there is
great concern using the APS to fund the new Innovation G ant
She wanted to continue to invest in students with the APS and to
continue to partner with the university and find new sources of
the funding for the grant.

8: 30: 57 AM

DR. PARADY appreciated the curriculum provision in SB 104 as a
voluntary option for districts to choose a nodel curriculum
adm ni stered by DEED. However, she did not want to take from one
programto fund anot her.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 5, 2017



She concluded that DEED has to be funded to support districts
w th new t asks.

8:32:41 AM

DR. MARK M LLER, Superi nt endent , Juneau School District,
testified on SB 102, SB 103, SB 104. He stated that no one can
argue against any of the innovative ideas in these bills, but
they require funding and support. He suggested to figure out a
way to pay for them He was opposed to elimnating the APS.

8:35:11 AM

TERRI E GOTTSTEIN, representing herself, testified on SB 102, SB
103, and SB 104. She said she sees an approach to education that
is wong. Cetting rid of the APS is very wong. She said you can
tell someone's priority by how they spend their tinme and their
noney.

She maintained that public education is a resource. She said
people are wlling to tax thenselves for education. She
encouraged the legislature to not vote based on their ideol ogy.

8: 38: 43 AM

DAVE HANSON, representing hinself, testified on SB 102 and SB
103. He spoke in support of the APS. It keeps the best and
brightest in the state and has econom ¢ val ue. Businesses want
assurance that the state has a good education system The APS is
one of the best tools to show that. It encourages hone-grown
Al askans to stay in Al aska.

He said SB 102 is wonderful in that it extends the broadband to
all schools, but agreed that it should be prioritized and
l[imted to schools only. He agreed that having good teachers in
the classroons is inportant.

8:41:38 AM

SAICHI OVA, Associate Vice President, Student and Enroll nment
Strategy, University of Al aska-Fairbanks, testified on SB 103.
He stated that UA strongly supports the continuation of the APS.
UA supports innovation in education, but opposes the use of
funds identified for the APS to be used for other purposes. He
related that UA believes that the APS incentivizes better
post secondary preparedness, helps the university retain Al askan
students, and results in the need for |ess renediation. AP
recipients take fewer renedial courses than non-recipients, stay
in school longer, and earn nore credits. He provided data to
back this up. Losing the APS sets back post-secondary attendance

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- April 5, 2017



at UA and in the state at large. He concluded that the greatest
challenge for UA and the state is not from outside colleges and
universities, but from Al askans choosing not to go to any
post secondary program

8:.44.21 AM

JOHN CONWELL, Superintendent, Unalaska Cty School testified on
SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104. He said he has not had nmuch tinme to
review the bills. He spoke of the broadband assistance provided
in SB 102 and pointed out that their district is at the limts
of satellite broadband delivery and it would take fiber optics
to provi de nore.

He said the curriculum provision in SB 104 is well-neaning, but
is something that is already happening in the Unalaska District.
It is sonething their Board believes strongly in and it is the
right thing to do.

8:46: 38 AM

MR. CON\WELL spoke in favor of keeping the APS program As a
former UA graduate, he |loves to encourage his students to strive
to go to college and the APS has been the greatest single
notivator for students to take rigorous <courses for that
opportunity. He said his own sons will soon be going to college
and he would like to see them go to college in Alaska. He
stressed the inportance of the APS for students in Unal aska.

He thanked the commttee for thinking outside the box, but he
encouraged them to watch for unintended consequences. He said to
| et the Al aska Education Challenge do its job.

8:49:52 AM

TODD SMOLDON, representing hinself, testified on SB 102 and SB
103. He said he has been a classroom teacher and a virtual
education teacher and he spoke in favor of increasing broadband
access. He spoke of the basic necessities for education, a
rigorous curriculum a desire from the student to learn, and a
teacher who is available to answer questions when students need
hel p.

He said his oldest son will be able to take advantage of the
APS, but his youngest son will not, but he will be applying for
ot her scholarships. He asked everyone to consider education
funding and | ook at needs, rather than wants.

8:53:31 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- April 5, 2017



BRENDA TAYLOR, Parent, testified on SB 102 and SB 104. She
suggested that the commttee look at the big picture of
education. She described how course offerings and scheduling
have changed at Juneau Douglas H gh School due to lack of
funding. She maintained that sonme classes, |ike health, should
not be offered as on-line courses. She did not want technol ogy
to substitute for classroomteachers.

She suggested not to encourage districts to wuse a nodel
curriculum but rather to develop their own local curriculum
She appreciated all the work the comm ttee has done.

8:56: 59 AM

ANDY HOLLEN, representing hinself, testified on SB 102, SB 103,
and SB 104. He stressed that they nust consider the consequences
of cuts to education along with these bills.

8:57: 57 AM

KAI TLI N DEMARCUS, representing herself, testified on SB 103. She
shared her vast experience in education, including her current
work with students pursuing postsecondary education. She spoke
in favor of keeping the APS and said that students feel very
passi onately about keeping the APS. She has seen the positive
benefits of the APS and she listed them It encourages students
to take rigorous curriculum and prepares them for college.
Students who qualify for the APS are invested in their
communities and want to stay in Al aska. Taking away the APS
woul d send the wong nessage to young people in Al aska.

CHERYL TUTTLE, President, Student Governance Ofice, Kena
Peninsula College, testified on SB 102. She stressed the
i mportance of keeping the APS. She said to prioritize what is
inmportant for the state and the APS is one of them

9:03: 14 AM

MARY NANUWAK, representing herself, testified on the inportance
of education. She said reading and |ocal teachers are very
i nportant. She appreciated the conmttee's hard worKk.

9:06:11 AM

SCOTT MACMANUS, Superintendent, Al aska Gateway School District,
testified on SB 102, SB 103, and SB 104. He pointed out that
there is not a fiscal note for the broadband in SB 102. Wt hout
financial support for delivery, his district will not benefit
from this bill. He agreed that with online education, it is
i nportant to have a good teacher.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- April 5, 2017



He turned to SB 103 and said he is against elinminating the APS.

Regarding SB 104, he said a nodel curriculum will be good for
smal|l districts, but their district has gone beyond needing a
nodel curriculum They have developed, and review, their own
curricul um

He suggested giving the Alaska Education Challenge (AED) a
chance. The task force has expertise and will |ook at unintended
consequences. He stressed the need to work together on the AED
and maintained that the three bills put the cart before the
hor se.

9:10:41 AM

JIM ANDERSON, CFO, Anchorage School District, testified on SB
103 and SB 104. He thanked the commttee for their efforts. He
appl auded the focus on education innovation in SB 103, noting
that ASD is working with UAA to initiate an Al aska Mddle
Col | ege School next year, an ANSEP high school, and a new STEM
program He stated the inportance of the APS and asked the
sponsor to reconsider doing away with it because it acts as an
incentive for students to push thenselves, develops nore rigor
and discipline, and encourages nore students to continue their
education in Al aska.

He said he looks forward to working with DEED to wupgrade
curriculum as proposed in SB 104. ASD agrees w th previous
testifiers that DEED will need nany team players in order to
tackl e that | ob.

9:12:42 AM

JOHN BLAINE, representing hinself, testified on SB 103. He
enphasi zed the need to keep the APS. He took issue with the
damage being done to education and all the efforts that are
m sdirected. He requested that the |egislature consider other
ways of dealing with the financial crisis.

9:14: 45 AM

CATHERI NE COMRD, representing herself, testified on SB 102, SB
103, and SB 104. She stated that it is difficult to |Iook at the
bills without the context of budget cuts to public education.
She liked the idea of increased broadband, but opined that nore
teachers in the classroom and snaller class sizes are nore
i nportant. She was opposed to the | oss of the APS. She concl uded
that the legislature is balancing the budget on the backs of
students and only gives lip service to education.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- April 5, 2017



9:16:26 AM

BECCA BERNARD, representing herself, testified on SB 102, SB
103, and SB 104. She said research has shown that small class
size and good teachers are the nobst inportant factors in
education. Innovation should not replace those basics. Schools
al so need stable, predictable funding. Cutting the APS will not
hel p keeps students in Alaska or inprove the nunber of good
teachers. She concluded that online learning is not a substitute
for good teachers.

9:18: 50 AM

KATE MEYER, representing herself, testified on SB 102 and SB
103. She spoke against the elimnation of the APS. She focused
on technol ogy considerations. She shared a personal story about
her son and stressed the inportance of good teachers and real -
life classroons. Increasing broadband will require considerable
funding and |IT staff. She Ilisted problens wth video
conferencing. She concluded that the idea of doing nore wth
| ess by maxim zing virtual education is m sguided.

9:23:18 AM
CHAI R HUGHES cl osed public testinony on SB 102, SB 103, and SB
104, and held the bills in commttee.

9:23:40 AM

There being no further business to conme before the committee
Senat or Hughes adjourned the Senate Education Committee at 9:23
a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- April 5, 2017



